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NOTICE - 
Notice is hereby given that theTwenty-Sixth (2bth) Annual General Meeting of the Members 

of M/s Hi-Klass Trading & Investment Limited will be held on Monday, 23rd September, 

2019, at the registered Office of the Company situated at Office No 15, 2nd Floor, Plot No 

24, Rehman Building, Veer Nariman Road, Hutatma Chowk, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001, a t  

10.00 a.m. to transact with or without modification(s) the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive consider and adopt the Audited Accounts of the company for the year ended 

31" March, 2019, and report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri. Vimal Shantilal Patangia Director Identification No- 

00166331, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offered for re-appointment. 

3. To appoint auditor of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this AGM until 

the conclusion of the next AGM and fix their remuneration and to pass the following 

resolution thereof. 

To consider and, if thought fit, to  pass, with or without modification, the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
. . 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant of provision of section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 

6 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014., pursuant to  recommendation of the 

Audit Committee M/s R.R. Gawande & Co. Chartered Accountants, (FRN 123762W) be and 

are hereby re-appointment as Auditors of the Company to hold the office from this Annual 

General Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and fix their 

remuneration as may be determined by the Audit Committee in consultation with the 

Auditors. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

4. To consider and i f  thought fit, t o  pass, with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as a Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and 203 read with 

Schedule V and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), 

and in accordance with the provisions of Articles of Associatio,n of the Company and subject 

to the approval of members , consent of the Board be and is hereby accorded to the 

appointment of Mr. SURESH TARACHAND JAlN (DIN: 01142300) as Whole-time Director 

designated as Managing Director of the Company, for a period of 3 (Three) years with effect 

from 1" April, 2019, on the terms and conditions including remuneration as per below 



HI-KLASS TRADING AND INVESTMENT LIMITED 

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 

RESOLVED FURTHERTHAT In the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year, 

the Coinpany shall pay t o  Mr. SURESH TARACHAND JAlN (DIN: 01142300) the above 

remuneration by way of salary, bonus and other allowances as a minimum remuneration 

but not exceeding the limits specified under Section II of Part II of Schedule V to the 

Companies Act, 2013, or any statutory modifications therein or enactment thereof, as may 

be agreed by the Board of Directors and Mr. SURESH TARACHAND JAlN (DIN: 01142300) 

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised t o  do all acts and take al l  

such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient t o  give effect to this resolution." 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 08.08.2019 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Suresh T. Jain 

Managing Director 

Director Identification No - 01142300 
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details, with liberty to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms and conditions of 

the said appointment and / or remuneration as it may deem fit, subject to the same not 

exceeding the limits specified under Section 197, read with Schedule V to the Companies 

Act, 2013 or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof; 

A. SALARY: 

Rs. 3,0001- per month with annual increment at such rate as may be approved by the Board 

of Directors of the Company based on merit and taking into account the Company's 

performance. 

Any increment in salary, as may be determined by the Board shall be within the limits 

specified under Section 197, read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or any 

statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof. 

In addition to the salary the Managing Director of the Company is not entitled t o  draw any 

perquisites from the Company. 

B. REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES: 

Reimbursement of actual entertainment expenses, expenses incurred for travelling, board 

and lodging; and provision of cars for use on the Company's business and, fuel expenses, 

insurance premium or other out of pocket expenses incurred in- course of the official duties 

shall be reimbursed at actual and not considered as perquisites. 

C. NATURE OF DUTIES: - 

(i) He will perform his duties with regard t o  all work of the Company and he will manage 

and attend to such business and carry out the orders and directions given by the Board from 

time t o  time in all respects and conform t o  and comply with all such directions and 

regulations as may from time to time be given and made by the Board. 

(ii) He will act in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and shall abide 

by the provisions containedin Section 166 of the Act with regard t o  duties of Directors. 

(iii) He will adhere t o  the Company's Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for Directors and 

Management Personnel. 

D. TERMINATION: 

The office of Mr. SURESH TARACHAND JAlN will be terminated forthwith by notice in writing 

on the vacation of office of Director by virtue of section 167,169 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or by giving 6 months' notice in writing by either 

party. 
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ANNEXURE TO ITEM NO 2 OF THE NOTICE 

I Name of the Director - I Mr. Vimal Shantilal Patangia 

I Date of Birth 124.12.1968 I 
I 

Relationship with other director inter-se 
I 

None 

Date of Appointment 

Expertise in specific functional area 

Qualification 

I 
Directorship in other Indian Public Limited 1 None i 

1 
02.11.2012 

Accounts, Finance Etc. 

Chartered Accountants 
I 

Company 

Chairman/Membership of Committees in 1 None 

No of Equity Shares held in the Company 

other Indian Public Limited Companies as on 

3lSt March, 2019 

20,000 

Notes: 

1. The Statement pursuant t o  Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to 

the special business set out in the Notice is annexed. 

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A 

PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE IN THE MEETING INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF, AND THE 

PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OFTHE COMPANY. 

3. The instrument appointing the proxy, duly completed, must be deposited at the 

Company's registered office not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 

meeting. A proxy form for the AGM is enclosed. 

4. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the 

Meeting are requested to send t o  the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution 

authorising their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

5. Particulars of Director(s) seeking re-appointment: Relevant particulars of Mr. Vimal 

Shantilal Patangia (DIN 00166331) are annexed with this notice. 

6. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the 

meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to 
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inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business hours of the Company, provided 

that riot less than three days of notice in writing is given to the Company. 

7.  Members/proxies should bring the duly filled Attendance Slip enclosed herewith to 

attend the meeting. 

8. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, 

maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, wil lbe available for inspection 

by the members at the AGM. 

9. The Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained 

under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the 

members at the AGM. 

10. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will remain closed from Monday, 

September, 2019 to Monday, 23rd September, 2019 (both days inclusive). 

11. Members are requested to address all correspondence, including dividend matters, to 

the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, Purva Share Registary (India) Private Limited, Unit 

No. 9, Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate, J.P. Boricha Marg, Opp. Kasturba Hospital Lane, Lower 

Parel (East), Mumbai- 400 011 Contact Person: Mr. V. B. Shah, Tel No: 022-23010771 

12. The Company is concerned about the environment and utilizes natural resources in a 

sustainable way. We request you to update your email address with your Depository 

Participant to enable us to send you the communications via email. 

13. Members holding shares in the same name under different Ledger Folios are requested 

to apply for consolidation of such Folios and send the relevant share certificates to Registrar 

and Transfer Agent of the Company for doing their needful. 

14. Members are requested to notify change in address, if any, immediately t o  Registrar and 

Transfer Agent of the Company quoting their folio numbers. 

15. Copies of the Annual Report - 2019 are being sent by electronic mode only to all the 

members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s) 

for communication purposes unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. 

For members who have not registered their emaii addresses, physical copies of the Annual 

Report - 2019 are being sent by the permitted mode. 

16. The Notice of the 2bth AGM and instructions for e-voting, along with the Attendance Slip 

and Proxy Form, is being sent by electronic mode to all members whose email addresses are 

registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s) unless a member has requested for a 

hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email addresses, 

physical copies of the aforesaid documents are being sent by the permitted mode. 
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17. Members may also note that the Notice of the 26th AGM and the Annual Report - 2019 

will be available at the registered office of the company. The physical copies of the aforesaid 

documents will also be available at the Company's registered office for inspection during 

normal business hours on working days. Members who require communication in physical 

form in addition t o  e communication, or have any other queries, may write to us at: 

st.jain999@gmail.com. 

18. Additional information pursuant to relevant provisions of LODR, 2015 of the Listing 

Agreement with the stock exchanges in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/re- 

appointment at the AGM are furnished and forms a part of the Notice. The Directors have 

furnished the requisite consents /declarations for their appointment/reappointment. 

19. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of the 

Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members 

holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their 

Depository Participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form shall submit their PAN 

details to the Company. 

20. All documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection a t  the Company's 

registered office during normal business hours on working days up to the date of the AGM. 

21. Voting through electronic means Pursuant t o  the provisions of Section 108 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules 2014, the company is offering e-voting facility to i t s  members in 

respect of the businesses t o  be transacted at the Annual General Meeting scheduled to be 

begins on Friday, 20th September, 2019 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on Sunday, 22nd September, 

2019 at 5.00 pm For this purpose the company has signed an agreement with Central 

Depository Services (India) Ltd ("CDSL") for facilitating e-voting. 

Please read the instructions given overleaf before exercising the vote. This communication 

forms an integral part of the notice dated gth August, 2019 for the Annual General Meeting. 

22. Instructions for E-voting in the Annual General Meeting In case of members receiving e- 

mail: 

(i) Log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com 

(ii) Click on "Shareholders" tab. 

(iii) Now, select the "COMPANY NAME" viz Hi-Klass Trading and Investment Ltd. from the 

drop down menu and click on "SUBMIT" 

(iv) Now Enter your User ID 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company. 
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(v) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

(vi) If.you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com 

and voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

(vii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below: 

(viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab. 

PAN 

DOB 

Dividend 

Bank 

Details 

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly the Company selection 

screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password 

Creation' menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the 

new password field. Kindly note that this password is t o  be also used by the demat holders 

for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided 

that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. I t  is strongly recommended not to 

share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 

confidential. 

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax 

Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as 

physical shareholders) 

Members who have not updated their PAN with the 

Company/Depository 

Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name 

and 8 digits of the Sequence number which is mentioned in address 

Label affixed on Annual Report, in the PAN field. 

.In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the 

applicable number of 0's before the number after the first two 

characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is 

Ramesh Kumar with sequence 

number 1 then enter RAOOOOOOOl in the PAN field 

Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the 

company records for the said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy 

format. 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account 
or in the company records for the said demat account or folio. 

.Please enter the DOE or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. 

If the details are not recorded with the depository or company 

please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank 

details field 
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(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on 

the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

(xi) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> viz Hi-Klass Trading and Investment 

Ltd. on which you choose t o  vote. 

(xii) On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the 

option "YES/NOU for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies 

that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent t o  the Resolution. 

(xiii) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" i f  you wish to view the entire Resolution details 

(xiv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A 

confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to 

change your vote, click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote. 

(xv) Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 

your vote. 

(xvi) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on "Click here to print" 

option on the Voting page. 

(xvii) if Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User ID 

and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as 

prompted by the system. 

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to log on 

to https://www.evotingindia.co.in and register themselves as Corporate. 

They should submit a scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of 

the entity to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

After receiving the login details they have to create a user who would be able to link the 

account(s) which they wish to vote on. 

The l is t  of accounts should be mailed to heipdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval 

of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

They should upload a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) 

which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, i f  any, in PDF format in the system for 

the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

In case of members receiving the physical copy: 



HI-KLASS TRADING AND INVESTMENT LIMITED 
ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 
(A) Please follow all steps from sl. no. (i) to sl. no. (xvii) above to cast vote. 

(B) The voting period begins on Friday, 20th September, 2019 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on 

Sunday, 22" September, 2019 at 5.00 pm IST. During this period shareholders' of the 

Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off 

date (record date) of Monday, September, 2019 may cast their vote electronically. 

The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSLfor voting thereafter. 

(C) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently 

Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.co.in under 

help section or write an email to  helpdesk.evotin~@cdslindia.com. 

22. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up 

equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date (record date) of Monday, l€ith 

September, 2019. 

23. The notice of Annual General Meeting will be sent to the members, whose names 

appear in the register of members/depositories as a t  closing hours of business, on 16th 

September, 2019. 

24. The Shareholders shall have one vote per equity share held by them as on the cut-off 

date (record date) of Monday, 16th September, 2019. The facility of e-voting would be 

provided once for every folio/client ID, irrespective of the number of joint holders. 

25. MAYUR MORE (Membership No ACS 35249 CP No. 13104) Proprietor of MAYUR MORE & 

ASSOCIATES., a Practicing Company Secretary, has been appointed as a Scrutinizer for the e- 

voting process. 

26. The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding three (3) working days from the 

conclusion of the e-voting period unblock the votes in the presence of at least two (2) 

witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make a Scrutinizer's Report of the 

votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company. 

27. The Results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company. The Results declared 

along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be available a t  the registered office of the 

Company, and on the website of CDSL within two (2) days of passing of the resolutions at 

the AGM of the Company and communicated to the BSE Ltd. 

Jave and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company /their relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in 

these resolutions. 
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

Item No.4 

The Board of Directors of the Company appointed Mr. SURESH TARACHAND JAlN is the 

Promoter of the Company and has been actively associated with the Company since 1992 

and has played a key role in bringing the Company t o  its present heights. He is Chartered 

Accountant. He has a vast experience of over three decades years in the field of Accounts, 

Taxation, Audit. He oversees the entire operations of the Company. Considering his level o f  

experience the Board recommend his appointment as Whole-time Director designated as 

Managing Director of the Company. 

Mr. SURESH TARACHAND JAIN was appointed as a Whole-time Director designated as 

Managing Director of the Company, for a period of 3 (Three) years with effect from 1" April, 

2019. 

As part of the initiative to create enduring guidance for the Company, the Board of Directors 

of the Company subject to the approval of members, at their meeting held on May 15, 

2014, had approved the appointment of Mr. SURESH TARACHAND JAlN of as Whole-time 

Director designated as Managing Director of the Company for a period of Three years 

commencing from lst April, 2017. On the terms and conditions and remuneration as set out 

in Resolution No. 4 of the accompanying notice. 
+ 

The Resolution No. 4 may be treated as a written memorandum setting out the terms of re- 

a'ppointment of Mr. SURESH TARACHAND JAlN under Section 190 of the Companies Act 

2013. 

Brief resume of Mr. SURESH TARACHAND JAIN, nature of his expertise in specific functional 

areas, names of companies in which he holds directorships and memberships / 
chairmanships of Board Committees and shareholding as per relevant provisions of SEBl 

LODR, 2015. 

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, 

in these resolutions. 
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  is closures required for payment of remuneration as per Schedule V of Companies Act, 

2013 

I. General Information about the Company 

Nature of lndustrv:. (i) Non-accepting Non -Banking Finance Company 

Date of Commencement of Commercial Production: The Company is already in Operation 

Financial Performance of Com~anv: The financial data as per the latest Audited Balance 

Sheet and Profit and Loss Account for the F.Y. ended 3lSt March. 2019 

Particulars Amount 

(Rs. In lacs) (INR) 

Net Profit before Depreciation and Tax -21.47 

Depreciation 0.03 

Net Profit before tax -21.44 

Current Tax 1.37 

Net Profit (loss) after Tax -22.81 

Paid Up Equity Share Capital 310.62 

Reserves and Surplus 188.32 

Foreign Investments or collaborations: The Company doesn't have any foreign investors and 

has not made any investments in foreigncollaborations or body corporate. 

II. lnformation about the appointee 

He is fellow member o f  lCAl and has three decades work experience in field of Account, 

Audit and taxation worked 

Recognition or awards: NA 

Job Profile and his suitability: Mr. Suresh T Jain is a promoter of the Company and he is on 

the Board of the Company since lg th  October, 1994 and since then he has been actively 

involved in the Management and has been guiding the company. Considering his overall 

Experience and Expertise the Management is of the view that expanding his role as a 

Managing Director will help the Company in Long run. 
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Remuneration proposed: Remuneration proposed to be paid t o  Mr. Suresh T Jain by way of 

salary, with a ceiling limit as mentioned in the Resolution appended in the Notice of 2bth 

Annual General Meeting. 

Comparative remuneration in the industrv: We are unable to give any comparative figures 

as the financial performances and individual cases differ, though in the same industry. 

Pecuniary relationship: Apart from receiving proposed managerial remuneration Mr. Suresh 

TJain does not have any pecuniary relationship with the Company. 

Ill. Other Information 

Reasons of loss or inadequate profits: The Company has adequate profit during the previous 

financial year & current financial year. In the absence or inadequacy of the profits in any 

financial year, the remuneration including the perquisities will be paid to Mr. Suresh T Jain 

in accordance with the applicable provisions of Schedule V of the Act. 

Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: Company is taking steps to increase 

profitability by undertaking new projects and expanding the current business activities. 

Expected increase in productivity and profits: The Company expects its turnover and 

profitability to improve over a period of next 2-3 years. 

Disclosures as per Regulation 36 (3) SEBl (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015-and Secretarial Standard-2 for appointment /reappointment of Directors 
at 2bth Annual General Meeting:. 

Name of Director 

Date o f  Birth 

Age 

Qualification 

Experience 

Terms & Condition of reappointment/ 

regularization 

Date of First Appointment on Board 

Directorships held in other companies 

(excluding section 8 and foreign companies) 

as on 3l1' March, 2019 

Mr. Suresh T Jain 

18/03/1960 

59 

Chartered Accountants 

He is fellow member of iCAl and has work 

experience as a tax consultant in field of 

Accounts, Audit and Taxation. 

Liable t o  retire by rotation 

18/10/1994 

Nil 
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I Memberships of committees across I Member of Audit Committee of Hi-Klass 

companies (includes only Audit & 

Shareholders'/lnvestors' Grievance 

Committee) 

Shares held in the Company 

Trading & Investment Limited 

25,100 
I 

Relationship between directors inter-se 

Number of Board Meetings attended in F Y 

2018-19 

N A 

05 



. 
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Route map to the venue of A G M  
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

To, 
The Members, 

Hi-Klass Trading and lnvestment Limited 

Mumbai 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Twenty-Sixth (26'h) Annual Report on the 

business and operations of the Company and the accounts for the Financial Year ended 

March 31,2019. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS -: 

Performance and Future Prospects: I 
Hi-Klass Trading and Investment Ltd, the Company is Registered NBFC with the Reserve Bank 

of lndia, and has obtained listing of equity shares on BSE ("BSE Ltd") w.e.f. 31.01.2019, since 

the Ahmedabad Stock Exchange and Pune Stock Exchange have become a derecognised 

Stock Exchange's in lndia. 

2017-18 (Rs in  Lakhs) 

17.03 

5.88 

0.08 

5.80 

2.69 

Nil 

3.11 

Particular 

Total Income 

Profit/(loss) before Depreciation 

Less: Depreciation &Amortization 

Profit / (Loss) before tax 

Provision for tax net off Differed Tax 

Earlier Tax provisions written back 

Profit / (Loss) after Taxation 

The banking sector in lndia is witnessing vital fundamental reforms in which Non-Banking 

Financial Companies ("NBFC"/ "NBFCs") have been playing a very important role from the 

macroeconomic perspective. NBFCs have shown considerable growth in the last couple of 

years and as an impact they have created their own position in the banking sector promising 

a rising future in the years to come. 

2018-19 (Rs in Lakhs) 

92.30 

-21.47 

0.03 

-21.44 

1.37 

Nil 

-22.81 

NBFCs have steadily expanded their share of total credit in the country. They have 

developed innovative and customised financial products and solutions that are delivered 

efficiently to fulfil customer aspirations. 

The implementation of various government initiatives to improve financial inclusion will 

further support the growth of NBFCs. With private consumption growing at a robust pace 

and a visible upswing in investments, NBFCs are well positioned to maintain their growth 

trajectory. 



HI-KLASS TRADING AND INVESTMENT LIMITED 

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 
Dividend and Reserve: 

The ~irectors did not recommend any dividend for the Financial Year ended 31" March, 

2019. 

During the year under review, no transfers were made to General Reserve. 

The Company was not required to Transfer ofunclaimed Dividend to Investor Education and 

Protection Fund. 

Material Changes & Commitments 

There are no material changes & commitments affecting the financial position of the 

Company during the Financial Year 2018-19 and from the end of Financial Year 315' March 

2019 till the date of this report. 

lnternal Financial Control 

The Company has effective internal financial control and risk mitigation system which are 

constantly assessed and strengthened. The lnternal Auditors periodically reviews the 

effectiveness of the lnternal Financial control. Further, same is reviewed by the Audit 

committee and suggestions are made for improvement. 

Details of Significant and Materiai Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals 

Impacting the Going Concern Status and Company's Operations in  Future 

During the period under review, your company doesn't receive any such kind of order from 

the regulator or Courts or Tribunals. 

Details i n  Respect of Adequacy of internal Financial Controls with reference to the 

Financial Statements 

During the period under review, your company has adequate lnternal Control. 

Subsidiary/Joint Ventures and Associates 

The Company has no joint ventures with any other entities, nor has any associates or 

subsidiary. 

Deposits 

The Company has not accepted any deposits under the provisions of section 73 of the 

companies Act 2013 during the any of the previous Financial Years as well as Financial Year 

2018-19. 

Auditors' Report 

The Statements made by the Auditors in their report are self-explanatory and doesn't 

require any comments by the Board of Directors. 
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Statutory Auditors 

Your attention is invited that, M/s R.R. Gawande & Co, (ICAI FRN No. 123762W) have been 

appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company a t  25th Annual General Meeting held on 

3lSt August, 2019. 

Your board of directors have recommended the appointment of statutory auditor from 

conclusion of thi; annual general meeting until of the next annual general meeting. 

Details o f  Frauds reported by  Auditors' 

No frauds have been reported by auditors hence no disclosures are required under the 

provisions of Section 143 of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules made thereunder. 

Share Capital 

During the F.Y. 2018-2019, there was no change in the Share Capital of the Company. 

Conservation o f  Energy, Technology Absorption & Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo 

The information relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption & foreign 

exchange earnings & outgo by the Companies annexed to the report as "Annexure -A" 

Extract o f  Annual Return 

The extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT 9, as required under Section 92 of the 

Companies Act 2013, is included in this Report as "Annexure - 8'' 

Management Discussion and Analysis 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the financial year under review as 

stipulated under Regulation 34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is annexed as "Annexure-C". 

Corporate Social Responsibility 

The provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to CSR expenditure are not applicable to 

the Company. 

Directors 

A) Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

There is no change or changes of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel during the period 

under review. 

In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vimal Shantilal 

Patangia (Director Identification No - 00166331), Director, retires by rotation at the Meeting 

and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. 
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8) Declaration by an lndependent Director (5) and Re- Appointment, IfAny: 

During the year no such appointment of lndependent Director (s), The appointment of Ms. 

Anupama Nathalal shah, Mr. Prakash Shree Gupta; Mr. Pravin Prakash Rane, Non-Executive 

lndependent Directors, were formalised by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 

March 30,2015. 

All the lndependent Directors have given the declarations that they meet the criteria for 

Independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regulation 25 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

An independent director shall hold office for a term up t o  five consecutive years on the 

Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for reappointment for next five years on passing of 

a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's 

report. 

C) Board Annual Evaluation:- 

The Board shall include a statement indicating the manner in which formal annual 

evaluation has been made by the Board of i t s  own performance and that of i ts  committees 

and individual directors. 

Number o f  Meetings o f  Board o f  Directors 

The calendar of meetings to be held in a year is decided in advance by the Board and 

circulated t o  the Directors. The gap between two consecutive meetings was not more than 

one hundred and twenty days as provided in section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

During the year, 5 meetings of the Board of directors were held during the Financial year 

2017-18 on following dates: 2" May, 2018, 2& August, 2018, 7th August, 2018, 2gfh 
October, 2018, January, 2019. 

Audit Committee 
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Pursuant to Section 177 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meeting of Board and i t s  

Powers) Rules, 2014, the Company have constitute audit committee. 

During the year under review, a total of four meetings of the Audit Committee were held, 

on Znd May, 2018, 7th August, 2018, 2gth October, 2018, 18th January, 2019. The 

Composition of Audit committee and attendance of each committee members is as under:- 

Nomination and Remuneration committees 

During the period under review, your company has set up Nomination Remuneration 

Committee pursuant to provision of section 178 read with rule 7 the Companies (Meeting of 

Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. 

No of Meeting 

4 

4 

4 

4 

During the year under review, a total of four meetings of the Nomination Remuneration 

Committee were held, on 2" May, 2018, 7th August, 2018, 2gth October, 2018, Bth January, 

2019. 

Category 

Non- Executive, 

lndependent 

Promoter, 

Executive, Non - 

lndependent 

Non- Executive, 

lndependent 

Non- Executive, 

lndependent 

Committee Member 

Mr. Prakash Shree Gupta 

Ivlr. Suresh Tarachand Jain 

Ms. Anupama Nathalal Shah 

Mr. Pravin Prakash Rane 

The Composition o f  the Nomination a n d  Remuneration Committee and the details of 

'meetings attended by the members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are 

given below:- 

Designation 

Chairman 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Stakeholder Relationship Committee 

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee and the details of' meetings attended by the 

members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are given below:- 

No of Meeting 

4 

4 

4 

Category 

Non- Executive, 

Independent 

Non- Executive, 

Independent 

Non- Executive, 

Independent 

Committee Member 

Mr. Prakash Shree 

Gupta 

Ms. Anupama 

Nathalal Shah 

Mr. Pravin Prakash 

Rane 

Designation 

Member 

Chairman 

Member 
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Four meetings of the committee were held during the year on 2nd May, 2018, 7th August, 

2018, 29th October, 2018, ISth January, 2019. 

independent 

No of Meeting 

4 

4 

4 

Rane 

Details of Establishment of Vigil Mechanism for Directors and Employees 

Category 

Non- Executive, 

Independent 

Non- Executive, 

Independent 

Non- Executive, 

Committee Member 

Mr. Prakash Shree 

Gupta 

Ms. Anupama 

Nathaiai Shah 

Mr. Pravin Prakash 

independent 

The details of establishment of vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report 

genuine concerns to be disclosed. 

Designation 

Member 

Chairman 

Member 

Mr. Suresh Jain I Member 1 Executive- Non- 1 4 

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under Section 186 

During the period under review, your company does not have any transaction relating to 

loans, guarantee or investments under section 186. 

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties 

During the period under review, your company does not have any Contract or arrangement 

referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain 

arm's length transactions. 

Managerial Remuneration 

A) Details of the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee's 

remuneration and other details as required pursuant to Rule S(1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

Not Applicable 

B) Details of every employee of the Company as required pursuant to 5 (2) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

During the period under review, No employee (s) fall under Rule 5(2) the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration o f  Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

C) Any director who is in receipt of any commission from the company and who is a 

Managing Director or Whole-time Director of the Company shall receive any remuneration 

or commission from any Holding Company or Subsidiary Company of such Company subject 

t o  i ts  disclosure by the Company in the Board's Report. 
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During the period under review, No Director (s) of the Company except Mr. Suresh T. Jain, 

Managing Director of the Company drawing remuneration. 

Secretarial Audit and Secretarial Audit Report 

During the period under review, Secretarial Audit Report given by Mayur More Proprietor of 

M/s MAYUR MORE &ASSOCIATES, Company Secretaries shall be annexed with the report as 

"Annexure-D" 

Directors Comments on Secretarial Audit Report: - 

1. Promoters are in process of demat of equity shares. 

Corporate Governance 

The Regulation 27(2)(a) of SEBl (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 regarding Corporate Governance is not applicable to the Company, as 

company falls under criteria of Regulation 15 (2) (a) of SEBl (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the paid-up capital of the company being less than Rs.10 

crore and net worth being less than Rs. 25 crore, the threshold limit as prescribed therein. 

Management Discussion and Analysis 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the financial year under review as 

stipulated under Regulation 34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 i s  annexed as "Annexure-C" 

Risk Management Policy 

During the period under review, your company has taken appropriate risk management 

policy for future growth & prospective. 

Listing 

The shares of the company are listed at Bombay Stock Exchange Limited. Listing fees of BSE 

is paid for the year 2019-20. 

Directors' Responsibility Statement 

The Directors' Responsibility Statement referred t o  in clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 

134 of the Companies Act, 2013, shall state that- 

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 

followed along with proper explanation relating t o  material departures; 

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 

view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit 

and loss of the company for that period; 
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(c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets 

of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

(e) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company 

and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 

(f) The directors had devised proper systems t o  ensure compliance with the provisions of a l l  
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

Particulars of Employees 

Details of Remuneration as per Companies (Appointment and remuneration of Managerial 

Remuneration) Rules 2014 are as follows: 

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the 

employees of the company for the financial year: NA 

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 

Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, i f  any, in the financial year: NA 

3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 

N A 

4. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company: Nil 

5. The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and 

company performance: NA 

6. Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the 

performance of the company: NA 

7. Variations in the market capitalisation of the company, price earnings ratio as at the 

closing date of the current financial year and previous financial year and percentage 

increase over decrease in the market quotations of the shares of the company in 

comparison t o  the rate at which the company came out with the last public offer in case of 

listed companies, and in case of unlisted companies, the variations in the net worth of the 

company as at the close of the current financial year and previous financial year: NA 

8. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and i t s  comparison with the percentile 

increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are 

any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: NA 

9. The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors: 

NA 

10. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who 

are not directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the 

year: NA 

11. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company: NA 
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In terms of section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies 

(Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) kules, 1988, the Directors 

furnish herein below the required additional information: 

I. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 

(a) Energy conservation measures taken - NIL 

Nature of your Companfs operations entails a very low level of energy consumption. 

(b) Additional investments and proposals if any, being implemented for reduction of 

consumption of energy - NIL 

(c) Impact of the measures at (a) and (b) above for reduction of energy consumption and 

consequent impact on the cost of production of goods - NIL 

(d) Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production - NIL 

II. DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECTTO TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION ETC., 

I Research and Development::- Your Company is predominantly trading in securities 

and therefore has not set up a formal R&D unit. 

I iI Technology Absorption, 

Adaptation and Innovation: Your Company is predominantly trading in 

securities and 
therefore not set up a formal R & D unit. 

Ill. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

Earnings in Foreign Exchange 

Foreign Exchange outgo 



Purruant toSectian 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013and rule 12(11 of the Company (Management &Administration) Ruler, 2014 

HUTATMA CHOWK. FORT, MUM8AI- 400001. TEL NO 9122- 22874084185. EMAIL- 
info@hiklarr.co.in. web: www.hikiarr.ca.in 

I. REGiSTMlON &OTHER DETAILS 

1 
2 

3 

4 

I I TranrferAgent, i f  any 

I I 

INDJSTRIAL ESTATE. I P LIORlCnA MARC. OPP I(ASTUROAHOSPITAL LAhE. .OWEIt 
PARE. EAST. MUMBA . l l W O l l  COhTACT NO. 022-23010771 

CiN 
Registration Date 

Name ofthe Company 

CategorvlSub-cate~oryafthe Compaov 

6 

PRlNCiPAl BUStNESSAClIV.TIESOF M E  COMPANY 1 
(A! me ourmnerr an 1 er contrlout ne 10 % o r  more of rhe tora'rurnover of cne ~amoanu rha I oe slatedl 

US1900MH1992PLC066262 
08.04-1992 

H I -KMS TRADING AN0 INVESTMENT LIMITED 

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES 

7 I~a rne ,  Address & contact details o f the  Registrar & ~PURVASHAREREGISTRY PRIVATE LIMITED OFFICE AT UNIT NO. 9, SHIV SHAKTI i Whetherlistedmmpany 

PART CJARS OF HO.OING. SUBS DIARY AhONSC;<ATE COMPAh ES 
SN I I . m e  and adorel l  01 lne Cornpan{ I CihIGLh I r a a n g I S . b r a ~ r v 1  I %d 1 A n p c d b c  

YES 

. .~ ~~~~~ ~~. 
5. 

No. 

1 

Associate 

Name and Description o f  main products I rervicer 

Other financial service activities, except insurance and pension funding 
activities, n.e.c. 

I I N.A. I N.A. I N.A. INA. ~N.A. 

sharer 
held 

NICCodeof the 
Praductlrervice 

64990 

Section 

% la  lotal turnover of the 
company 

100 



IIV. SHARE HOLDING PATiERN I 
(Equity sharecapital breakup as percentage of total equity) 
(i) Category-wireshare Holding 

[As on 31-March-2018] [As on 31-MarchJ0191 



minal sharecapital 

iiil Shareholding of Pmmoter 
SN Shareholddr Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year 

No. ofsharer 

%change in 
~hareh~la ia ia  

during the 
Year 

Shareholding at the end or the year 

%of total 
Sharer of 

the 
company 

NO. of Sharer %ofsharer 
Pledgedl 

encumbered to 
totalrharer 

%of total 
Sharer of the 

company 

%of Shares 
Pledged 1 

encumbere 
d to total 



(iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, i f  there ir no change) 



(iv) Shareholding Pattern o f  top ten Shareholders 

lorher thon Directors, Promoters ond Holders of GDRs ond ADRsJ: 

PRIVATE LlMlTEO 

I A ~  the beginningoftheyearl 1 I 2.27.600 1 7 . 3 3 ~ 1  2.27.6WI 7.33% 

SN 

I 

- - 

Changer during the year 0.00% 

l ~ t  thc end of thevear I I I 227.600 1 7.33%1 227.6001 

No. of sharer 

Far each of theTop 10 
shareholders 

I IECOSPACE INFOTECH I I I I I I 

% o f  total 
sharer 

2 

Oate 

4 

- 

NO. of sharer 

PINCERS COMMODITIES 
PRIVATE LIMITED 

At the beginning of the year 

Changer during the year 

At the end of the year 

5 

Reason 

%of rota1 
shares 

EVERGREEN INFRANIRMAN 
ADVISORY PRIVATE 
LlMlTEO 

At the beginping o f  the year 

Changer during the year 

At the end of the year 

6 

1.88.000 

1.88.000 

PRAJAN TRADING PRIVATE 
LIMITED 

At the beginning o f  the year 

Changer during the year 

At the end of thevear 

7 

Shareholding at the beginning of the year 

1.33.750 

1.33.750 

VOINATRACING PRIVATE 
LlMlTEO 

At the beginning o f  the year 

Changer during the year 

At the end of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding during thc year 

6.08% 

0.00% 

6.08% 

1.25.000 

1.25.000 

FORTUNE FUTURE PRIVATE 
LTD 

At the beginningafthe year 

Changer during the year 

At the end of the year 

4 31% 

0 00% 

4.31% 

1.20.000 

1.20.000 

1.88.000 

1.88.000 

4.02% 

0.00% 

4.02% 

1.1O.OW 

1.10.000 

5.05% 

0.00% 

5.05% 

1.33.780 

1.33.780 

3.86% 

O.W% 

3.86% 

4.31% 

0 OUY:, 

4 31% 

1.25.000 

1.25.000 

3.54% 

000% 

3.84% 

0.02% 

0.00% 

4.02% 

1.20.000 

1.20.000 

3.86% 

0.00% 

3.8:;?; 

1.10.000 

1.10.000 

3.50% 

O.r)O% 

3.54% 



3.22% 

0.00% 

3.22% 

4.19% 

000% 

n.195 

4.02% 

O.W% 

4.02% 

. 3.22% 

0.00% 

3.22% 

1.00.000 

1.W.000 

8 

1.00.000 

1.00.000 

SENSEX OiSTRl8UTlONS 
PVT LTO 

At the beginning of the year 

Changes during the year 

At the end ofthe year 

4.19% 

0.00% 

4.19% 

4.02% 

0.03% 

4.02% 

1.30.WO 

1.30.000 

1.25.WO 

1.25.m 

9 

10 

1.30.WO 

1.30.ONi 

1.25.000 

1.25.000 

SHARAD KUMAR JbJOOlA 

At the beginning of the year 

Changer during the year 

At the end of the year 

KAPILTANFIA 

At the beginning of the year 

Changer during the year 

~t the end of the year 



("1 Shareholding of Directon and Key Managerial Personnel: 

Directors and each Key 
Managerial Personnel 



i) PrincipaiAmount 

ii) Interest due but not paid 

iii) Interest accrued bdt not due 

Iv. INDEBTEDNESS I 
Indebtedness ofthecompany including interest outrtanding/accrued but not due for paymenl. 

(Anll. Rr./Lacl) 

. Redueion 

Net Chanee I 1 I I 

Total indebtedncrr 

Total (iti it i i i) 

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year 

il Principal Amount I I I I 

lndebtednerr a t  the beginning of the financial year 

Oepositl Particulars 

I I I 

ii) lnterert due but not paid 

iii) interest accrued but not due 

Total li+ii+iii) 

Change in indebtedness during the financial year . Addilian 1 1 1 I 

Secured Loans excluding 
deposits 

Unrecured Loanr 



V I  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONhEL . J 
A Hem~nelat onto Manag l g  Dtrccror. wnoe r me u r c c r o r r ~ ~ d / a r  Manager 

Particulars of Remuneration I Name of MU/WTO/ Manager ITolal Amount  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

Name 
Designation 

Giorssalary 
(a) Salary ar per provirions contained i n  seclion 17(11 of the Income- 
tax Act, 1961 

(b) Value of perquisites u/r 1712) Income-tax Act, 1961 

(c) Pmfitr in lieu ofsalary undersection 1713) Income- tax Act, 1961 

0. Remuneration to other Directors 

Stackoption 
Sweat Equity 

Cammirrion 

- ar% of profit 
- others, specib 

Others, pleare specihl 
Total (A) 

r ~ ; , ; " ~  =< "*,.h- &?, 

Total (2) 
Total (8)=(1+2) 

Total Managerial Remuneration 

Overall Ceiline as n@r the Act 

Total Arnounl 

36.00D.00 

(RS) 

36,000.00 

SURESH T JAlN 
MANAGING DIRECTOR 

36.0W.00 

36,000.W 

Name of Directors SN. 

VIMAL PATANGlA 

DIRECTOR 
0 

36.000.00 

Particulars of Remuneration 



C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Perrannel other than MDIManagerlWTD 

. . 

I I 
I 

(b) Value of perquisites u l r  1712) Income- 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section1 I I I 

1 

I 1 117131 income- tax Act. 1961 I I I I 

Tota! Amount SN. Parficulars of Remuneration ~ a m e o f  Key Managerial Personnel 

(IlrILacl 

2 

j 

4 

5 

MANOEEP KAUH 
CS 

2.76.000.00 

Name 

Designation 
Grosssalary 
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
section 17111 of the income-tax Act. 1961 

PRAVIN K CHOPDA 
CFO 

0 

M r  Mandeep Kaur resign from the post d Company Secretary of the Company wef 03.07.2019 

VII. PENALTIES PUNISHMENT COMPOUNDING OFOFFENCES: 

unirhmentl Compounding 

Stackoption 

Sweat Equity 

Commission 

- a 6 % 0 i  profit 
- oll~ers, specify 

Others, plearespecify 
Total 2.76.000.W 
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"Annexure- C" 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 

Industry Structure and Development:. 

Non-banking finance companies (NBFCs) have scripted a great success story. Their 

contribution to the economy has grown in leaps and bounds from 8.4% in 2006 to above 

14% in March, 2015. 

In terms of financial assets, NBFCs have recorded a healthy growth-a compound annual 

growth rate (CAGR) of 19% over the past few years-comprising 13% of the total credit and 

expected to reach nearly 18% by 2018 -19. 

With the on-going stress in the public sector banks due to mounting bad debt, their appetite 

to lend (especially in rural areas) is only going t o  deteriorate, The success of NBFCs can be 

clearly attributed to their better product lines, lower cost, wider and effective reach, strong 

risk management capabilities to check and control bad debts, and better understanding of 

their customer segments. ~ o t  only have they shown success in their traditional bastions 

(passenger and commercial vehicle finance) but they have also managed to build substantial 

assets under management (AUM) in the personal loan and housing finance sector which 

have been the bread and butter or retail banks. Going forward, the latent credit demand of 

an emerging lndia will allow NBFCs t o  fill the gap, especially where traditional banks have 

been wary t o  serve. Additionally, improving macroeconomic conditions, higher credit 

penetration, increased consumption and disruptive digital trends will allow NBFC's credit to 

grow at a healthy rate of 7-10% (real growth rate), over the next five years. Clearly, NBFCs 

are here to stay. 

Capital Market:- 

lndian investors get a handsome 17-18.5% return from stocks during the financial year 

ending March 2017, as the Narendra Modi government aggressively pursued crucial reforms 

such as the Goods and Services Tax and after an emphatic win in the Uttar Pradesh election. 

The 30-share benchmark Sensex ended the financial year up 16.9% while the broader Nifty 

was up 18.5% as the reforms push bolstered investors faith in the growth story of Asia's 

third largest economy. 

Investors are betting on a further rise in the share prices in the coming days as GST is  rolled 

out, Indian companies post better profits and as the economic growth picks up. 

"In terms of market strategy, 44% of investors think stock picking remains the best strategy 

and another 35% think this is a bull market and they are buyers of equities," i t  said, adding 

213 of investors surveyed expect lndia to outperform other major emerging markets. 
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lndian stocks have especially surged in the past three months with the Sensex rising 11% 

from the end of December. The UP election results showing BJP's overwhelming win in the 

country's biggest state and a positive signal to Modi's second term at the Centre 

compounded investor confidence. 

"lndian financial markets have had a great ride in first quarter of calendar year 2017. This 

follows exceptionally high volatility and the related hit caused by the unexpected 

demonetisation announced in early Novemberand the strong dollar rally," CLSA said in a 

note. 

Global developments especially in the United States and a general improvement in 

economic outlook also aided the bull run. 

The US benchmarks Dow Jones Industrial Average is up 17% while Nasdaq is  up 21% in the 

last 12 months. UK's FTSE-100 is up 19% despite the Brexit worries. 

In Asia, the Japan's Nikkei is up 13.5% on extension of Bank of Japan's monetary stimulus 

and a pickup in growth but  Shanghai stock index was up just 7% as the economy continues 

to slow. 

Outlook, Risk and Concern:- 

lndia will remain the fastest-growing major economy in the world. 

That's the Narendra Modi government's outlook for Asia's third-largest economy, despite 

the shock of demonetisation and a range of uncertainties, both at home and abroad. 

India's real GDP growth will remain between 6.75% and 7.5% in the 2017-2018 financial 

year, the government said in i t s  Economic Survey, an annual document that deciphers the 

state of the economy. 

"Even under this forecast, lndia would remain the fastest growing major economy in the 

world," the survey said, although the International Monetary Fund earlier this year 

estimated that China was growing faster than lndia. 

In the current financial year, real GDP is projected to grow at about 7%, the survey added, 

significantly lower than the 7.6% growth the economy registered in 2015-2016. 

"Macroeconomic stability is easy t o  overlook and become complacent about," he added 

The coming financial year won't be particularly easy either. The economy will continue to 

deal with the effects of demonetisation while also contending with a range of global 

uncertainties. The biggest international risks to the lndian economy. that Subramanian listed 

out include rising oil prices, trade-related tensions between major economies, and growing 

protectionism. 
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Opportunity and Threats: 

i. Long-term economic outlook positive, will lead to opportunity for capital market 

services 

ii. Growing Financial Services industry's share of wallet for disposable income 

iii. Regulatory reforms would aid greater participation by all class of investors 

iv. Leveraging technology t o  enable best practices and processes 

v. Corporate looking at consolidation / acquisitions / restructuring opens out 

opportunities for the corporate advisory business 

Threats:- 

i. Execution risk 

ii. Short term economic slowdown impacting investor sentiments and business 

activities 

iii. Slowdown in global liquidity flows 

iv. Increased intensity of competition from local and global players 

v. Market trends making other assets relatively attractive as investment avenues 

Operational and Financial Performance:- 

The summarized performance of Hi-Klass Trading & Investment Limited was as under: 

Human Resources and Industrial Relations:- 

Revenue from Operation - 
Others 

Profit Before Tax 

The Company has appropriate policies in place for recruitment, training, skill development 

and compensation for its workmen, employees and staff. The Company makes an effort to 

keep on building good relationship with i t s  associates, competitors and all the stakeholders 

in the various industries wherein it operates. 

Risk Management:- 

2018-19 (Rs in  

Lakhs) 

92.30 

Nil 

-21.44 

Company has formulated a risk management framework which lays the procedure for risk 

assessment and mitigation. Company manages various risks like financial risk, operational 

risk, marketing risk, external risk and regulatory risks associated with the mortgage 

business. The critical risks which can significantly impact profitability and financial strength 

are credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. 

2017-18 (Rs in 

Lakhs) 

17.03 

Nil 

5.80 

Internal Control System:- 
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The Company has very effective control system covering both accounting and administrative 

controls. The internal audit carries out audit tests and report on non - compliance / 
weaknesses i f  any, through internal audit reports. These reports are reviewed by the Audit 

Committee of the Board. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 08.08.2019 

For, Hi-Klass Trading and Investment Limited 

Suresh T. Jain 

Managing Director 

Director Identification No - 01142300 
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FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FORTHE FINANCIALYEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2019 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 20141 

To, 
The Members, 

Hi-Klass Trading and lnvestment Limited 

Office No 15,2nd Floor, Plot No 24, 

Rehman Building, Veer Nariman Road, 

Hutatma Chowk, Fort, 

Mumbai - 400 001 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 

and the adherence t o  good corporate practices by Hi-KlassTradine: And Investment Limited 

("hereinafter called the company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 

provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 

and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Hi-Klass Trading And lnvestment Limited books, papers, 

minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also 

the information provided by the Company, i ts  officers, agents and authorized representatives 

during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company 

has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 315' March, 2019 complied 

with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- 

processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 

the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by Hi-Klass Trading and lnvestment Limited ("the Company") for the 

financial year ended on 3lSt March, 2019 according t o  the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

(ii) The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and rules made there under; 

(iii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there 

under; 

(iv) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 
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(v) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 

there under t o  the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 

Investment and External Commercial Borrowings- (Not Applicable to this Company 

During Audit Period); 

(vi) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of lndia Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):- 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Prohibition o f  Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 1992; 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not Applicable to this Company 

during Audit Period); 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008 (Not Applicable to this company during Audit Period); 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2009 (Not Applicable to this Company during Audit Period); and 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 

(Not Applicable t o  this Company during Audit Period); 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Depositories and Participants) Regulation, 

1996; 

j. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957; 
k. The Securities Exchange and Board of lndia (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirement) Regulation Rules, 2015 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of lndia 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange; 

During the period under review and the representations and clarification received from the 

management, we confirm that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc, except t o  the extend mention below:- 
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1. .Certain promoters have not converted their shares in demat form. 

We further report that compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct and Indirect 

Tax laws (if applicable) by the Company has not been review in this Audit since the same has 

been subject to review by the Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals. 

We further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There is no change (s) in the 

composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review; 

Adequate notice is given t o  all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 

notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking 

and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 

and for meaningful participation at the meeting; 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and 

recorded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 

commensurate with the size and operations o f  the company to monitor and ensure 

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events/actions having 

a major bearing on the company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, 

regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 10.05.2019 

For, Mayur More &Associates 

Company Secretaries 

Mayur More (Proprietor) 

ACS No. 35249 COP No. 13104 
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Annexure 'A' (Supplemental toSecretarial Audit Report) 

To, 
The Members 

M/s Hi-Kiass Trading & Investment Limited 

Office No 15, 2nd Floor, Plot No 24, 

Rehman Building, Veer Nariman Road, 

Hutatma Chowk, Fort, 

Mumbai - 400 001 

Our report of even date is to read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibilities of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 

based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practice and processes as were appropriate t o  obtain 

reasonable assurance about correctness o f  the contents of the secretarial records. The 

verification was done on test basis t o  ensure that correct facts are reflect in secretarial 

records. We believe that the processes and practice, we followed provide a reasonable 

basis for our opinion. 

3. Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

4. The Compliance of the provision of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the reposiblitiies of management. Our examination was 

limited t o  the verification of procedures on test basis. 

5. The secretarial Audit report is neither as assurance as t o  the future viability of the 

company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 

conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 10.05.2019 

For, Mayur More & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

Mayur More (Proprietor) 

ACS No 35249 CP No. 13104 
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CEO and CFO Certification 

To, 
The Board of Directors 

Hi-Kiass Trading and lnvestment Limited 

Mumbai 

We; ~ u r e s h  T. Jain, Managing Director,. Pravin K. Chopda, CFO of Hi-Kiass Trading and 

lnvestment Limited, t o  the best of my knowledge and belief, certify that: 

(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and 

that to the best of their knowledge and belief: 

(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 

fact or contain statements that might be misleading; 

(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are 

in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

(b) To the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company 

during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the company's code of conduct. 

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 

reporting and that they have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the 

company pertaining to financial reporting and they have disclosed to the auditors and the 

Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of 

which they are aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify these 

deficiencies. 

(d) They have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee 

(i) There has not been a change in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

(ii) There has not been changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same 

have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

(iii) We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with involvement 

therein of the management or any employee having a significant role in the Company's 

internal control system over financial reporting 

Sd/- 

Place: Mumbai Suresh T. Jain 

Date: 02.08.2019 Managing Director 

Sd/- 

Pravin K. Chopda 

CFO 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To The Members Of MIS Hi-Klass Trading And Investment Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements of W s  Hi-Klass 
Trading And Investment Limited (hereinafter referred to as " the Company") which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and statement of Profit and Loss, 
(statement of changes in equity) and the cash flows Statement for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies (hereinafter referred to as "the financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2019, of profitlloss, (changes in equity) and its cash flows 
for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the company's annual report but does not include the financial statements 
and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. We 
conclude that there is a no material misstatement of this other information and 
therefore, we have nothing to report in this regard. 



R R GAWANDE & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

F-106, B- Wing, Express Zone Mall, Opp Reliance Energy. 
Western Express Highway, Goregaon East, Mumbai - 400 097. 

E-Mail:- rtgawandeandco@yahoo.co.uk & rrgawandeandco@,hotrnail.corn 
MobileNo 98214 61170,93214 61170 Tel. No. 022 2876 9653 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements 

The Company's management and Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation 
and presentation of these financial statements in term of the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified 
under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directorslmanagement of the 
companies included in the Company are responsible for maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the financial 
statements by the ManagementOirectors of the Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Company are responsible for assessing the ability of the 
Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directorslmanagement of the companies included in the 
Company are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the 
Company. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
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I. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement. of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. 

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial 
information of the entities or business activities within the Company to 
express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the 
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements 
of such entities included in the financial statements. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We 
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of 
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the 
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to 

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit of the aforesaid financial statements. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to 
preparation of the aforesaid financial statements have been kept so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other 
auditors. 

C) The Company has no branch of ice  and hence the company is not required to 
conduct audit under section 143 (8) of the Act; 

d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss(inc1uding Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Cash flow statement, and the Statement of 
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account; 

e) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read 
with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; 

f )  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 
31st hfarch, 2019 none of the directors are disqualified as on 31st March, 
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 
refer to our separate report in "Annexure B"; and 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
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in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

i) The Company has no pending litigations hence no impact on its 
financial position in its financial statements; 

ii) Provision has been made in the financial statements, as required under 
the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable 
losses, if any, on long term contracts including derivatives contracts.. 

Iii) There has been no delay in transferring amonts, required to be 
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by Company. 

For R. R. Gawande & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. : 123762W 

R. R. Gawande (Prorietor) 
(Membership No. 114553) 
M V M ~ :  16.05.Lt)l9. 



R R GAWANDE & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

F-106, B- Wing, Expiess Zone Mall, Opp. Reliance Energy. 
Western Express Highway, Goregaon East, Murnbai - 400 097. 

E-Mail:- rrgawandeandco@,yahoo.co.uk & rrgawandeandco@,hotrnail.com 
MobileNo 98214 61170,93214 61170 Tel. No. 022 2876 9653 

Annexure - A to Inde~endent Auditor's R e ~ o r t  

The 'Annexure A' referred to in Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of the 
Company on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2019, we report 
that: 

(i) (a)According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the 
records produced before us, we are of the opinion that the Company is 
maintaining proper records showing full particulars including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets. 

(b)According to the information and explanation given to us, fixed assets were 
physically verified by the management according to a designed plan to cover 
all the locations which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size 
of the company and the nature of its assets. 

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, there is no 
immovable property. Hence this clause is not applicable to the Company. 

(ii) According to the information and explanation given to us Inventory has been 
physically verified by the management during the year. No material 
discrepancies were noticed that would have an impact over the Financial 
Statements. 

(iii) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has 
not taken any unsecured loans during the year. Hence this clause is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(iv) According to the information and explanation given to us, we are of the 
opinion that in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been 
complied with. 

(v) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has 
not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act 
and the rules framed there under. 

(vi) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Central 
Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost recors under sub-section 
(1) of section 148 ofthe Act for any of the activities ofthe Company. 

(vii) (a) According to the books and records as produced and audited by us in 
accordance with generally accepted' auditing practices in India and also 
Management representations, undisputed statutory dues in respect of 
Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Taw, Wealth 
tax, Service tax, Custom duty, Excise duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other 
statutory dues, if any, applicable to it, has been regularly deposited with the 
appropriate authorities. 

(viii)According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the 
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records before us, the company has not borrowed any funds i?om the Banks1 
Financial Institutions1 Government or Debenture Holders. 

(ix) According to the information and explanation given to us and the record 
produced before us, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial 
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or by way of 
any term loan during the year. 

(i) During the course of our examination of the books of account carried in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing standards in India, we have 
neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company or on the company 
by its officers or employees, either noticed or reported during the year, nor 
have we been informed of such case by the Management. 

(ii) According to the information and explanation given to us and the record 
produced before us, managerial remuneration has been paid during the year as 
per the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(iii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company is not a Nidhi Company as specified in the Nidhi Rules, 2014. 
Hence the provision of this clause is not applicable to the company. 

(iv) According to the information and explanation given to us and the record 
produced before us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance 
with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the 
details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements, as required by the 
applicable Indian Accounting Standards. 

(v) According to the information and explanation given to us and the record 
produced before us, the company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during 
the year under review. Hence the provision of this clause is not applicable to 
the company. 

(vi) As per the information and explanation given to us and the record produced 
before us, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected to-its directors. Hence provision of Section 192 
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to thecompany. 

(vii) The company is registered as Non Banking Finance company under Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934. 

For R. R. Gawande & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn No. 123762W 

R. R. Gawande Proprietor 
(Membership No. 114553) 

Place : Mumbai Date : 16.05.2019 
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Annexure - B to the Inde~endent Auditors' R e ~ o r t  
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub- 
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 
In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company as of and for 
the year ended 31%' March 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of Hi-Klass Trading And Investmrnt Ltd ("the Company"), 
comprising the Balance Sheet as at 3 1 March 2019. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The respective Management and Board of Directors of the Company, which are 
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
("ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and .efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 
2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial 
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal fmancial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's jud-went, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or emor. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Infernal Financial~Confrols over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts- and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Infernal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or 6aud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
. In our opinion, the company has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 

controis system over financial reporting and suchinternal financial controls over 
financial reporting were operating effectively as at.31"  arch 2019, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI. 

For R. R. Gawande & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Regn No. 123762W) 

R. R. Gawande Proprietor 
(Membership No. 114553) 
Mumbai : 16.05.2019 



As per our Report of even dale 
For R R Gawande & Co. 
Chanered Accountants 
FRN 123762W 

HI - KLASS TRADING AND TNMESTMENTS LIMITED 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019 

R R Gawande 
Prioprietor 
M No. 114553 
Mumbai: 16.05.2019 

For and an behalf of the Board of Direcotn 

(Amount in Rs.) 

Asat 31st March, 2018 

Audil~d 

5.554 

3.440,wO 

12.W.312 

I0.MXI 

4.930.088 

11.455 

5,633,042 

26218.376 

54792,827 

38,630,500 

13.543.783 

618,544 i 52,792,821 

ST Jain V 5.. Patanpia 
Direclor Director 
DIN : 01 142300 DIN : 00166331 

Asnt 31rt March 2019 

Audited 

2,582 

3.440.000 

5.071.370 

10,OW 

11.921243 

195.955 

5,416,246 

24.031.508 

50,089,405 

38,630,500 

11.263.013 

195.892 

50,089,405 

# 
Pr~vin Chopda CS Mandeep Kaur 
ChiefFinaneial Oflicer 

Note ~ b .  

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

1 

rlremene. 

A 

1 

2 

~ - 

B 

1 

2 

Particulars 

ASSETS 

Non-current asell 

Property, plant and equipment 

Othcr oon-eurrcnt asset$ 

Currentmets 

In~cnloTies 

Fi:mcial assets 

Invwments 

Tmde wcivabler 

Cash and a s h  cquivalcnls 

Bank balances other ban Cash and Cash equivalents above 

Loans 

~ ~ 

TOTAL - ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

Equity Share cdpilal 

Other equity 

LIABILITIES 

Current llnhilities 

Enancia1 liabilitiu 

Trade payabler 

Summary of Significant Accounring Policies 

TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ---- 
The accompanying notes are an integml pan of the fittdc~ai 



HI - KLASS TRADING AND INVIESTMENTS LZMITED 
Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2019 

(Amount;" Rr )  

I 

I1 

I11 

Partirulam 

Income 

REVrnVs Fro", opcrationr 

Oihvlneomr 

T o l d  Re~enue(i+ll+UO 

I V  

a) 

h) 

d) 

r) 

V 

I I h)!) lrcm iha will not b .  r r r l~ r i t i ed  rubwyuenily ra Uie surementafPmfir m d  Lars 
"1 111wmcTar on Bm La will nor be mclasifiilicd rubuquendy to ihc rfrlemmtof 

pmli, andlon 

N o l a  
For the 

Yar ended 
3 l r lMar rh  2019 

EXP.NU 

hxh-o l rmk . in -@e 

Chang* in inventotilrolfinirhcdgwdr. work-in-pmgramd rtocl.in-rmde 

Employecbencfirr erpcnw 

Drprrcintioaandamonimoniti~~~ 

oihcrerpcnwr 

Tnlsl E x p e w  

ProfiUlLos) heromrx~eptiouuI i t e m  and tax 

Other C ? m p r e h ~ ~ i " c l ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  IN*, orta* 

r) i) llem h a t  wil l  he rmlauitlsd ruhrcqu8nuy to ihervdtemcnr of Profit md Lars 
i i ) lncOmeP4i on itcmr lhrt will be reclassifid rvhwqi8cnlly to ihc vaamentof 

p i ~ f i t  rnd 10s 

I I Tots1 OLhr rCompr~he~ i rc  Incsme lo r  the Period I 

For lh. 
Yrsr ended 

3lrtMarrh2018 

I 
i 

I I Total c o m p r ~ e n r i r =  lncom. ror the period I 
Eerningr perequity rhnre [naminnl value olrham 7 101 

Basic & Diluted (betbrc EIEeplionrl iluns) 

Basic & D i l " l d  Id. ,<I Erccpliund i,cmr, 

Svmm ofS ion i f i cmrA~mun~i i iP~ I ic i i  S n e  armrnpansing nares we m integra pmof ihe filrancill rwremcnts. 

.As per our Rcporr o f  even dae 
For R R Gawmlde 8; Co. 
Chmered Accounmlr 
FRN 123762W 

K R Gawimde 
Prioprietor 
M No. 114553 
Murnbd : 16.05.2019 

For and on behalf o f  ihc Board or Direcons 

S T  Jain V.5 Palangia 
Dircclor Direcror 
D I N  : 01 1423W D I N  : 00166331 

Pravin Chopdv CS Mandeep Kaur 
Chicf Financial Offitcr 



HI - KLASS TRADING AND INVIESTMENTS LIMITED 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2019 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Changes in eqiiity share capital 

As at 1st April, 2018 

B. Other Equity 

Particulars 

As at 3 1st March, 2017 

Profit/ (Loss) for the Year 

As at 31st March, 2018 

Profit/ (Loss) for the Year 

As at 31st March, 2019 . 

Note 

7 

Total 

13,232,022 

31 1,761 

13,543,783 

(2,280,770) 

11,263,012 

Reserves and Surplus 

Share Premium 

2,200,000 

2,200,000 

- 

2,200,000 

Retained 
Earnings 

11,032,022 

311,761 

11,343,783 

(2,280,770) 

9,063,012 





HI - KIASSTRAOING AND INVIESTMENTS LIMITED 

Note No. 3 Notes Forming part of the financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019 

Finished Goods (Valued a t  cost) 

Note No. 4 
Trade Receivables 

Unsecured 

Considered Good I '  
Total 

Note No. 5 
Short-term loans and advances 

a. Loans and advances 

Advances to othersunsecured Considered 

24,031,508 26,218,376 

Note No. C 

Equity Share capi:al 
.~ . - , .., :.>: . \ , :  . .. . . . . , , 

. .. . .  -. - . . ,...<, :; . ;, , ., jh+& Ca iia,.:. j".:. . ..; ."' '.' '.'..' 
.. .. - . -. . .. .. $ +: , .:J: t.:.-::':-.- .,. ., u. :,..% ,~;...;-.y:.~.,-..c , . . . A ' . ~ .  . 

Arnt:?$rt;p?ich.: 
.; 2019 ,'., : 

Auihorised 

Equity Shares : 

65.00.000 Equity Shares of Rs. lo/- Each 

(Previous year- 55,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. lo/- each) 

+At 31rtI\?arrh;, 
r:.. , ib18 .: 

Issued. Subscribed & Paid-Up Capital 

31.06.200 Equity Shares of Rs lo/-  each 
(Previous year- 31.06.200 Equity Shares of Rs. lo/- eoch) 

A) Reconciliation of the number of sharer outstanding a t  the beglnnlng and at the end of the reporling period 

. . ... . .  . As at 3151 March, 2019 I . A S  at 31st Idarch, 2018 

I I 

65,000,000 

Add :Share Forfeited - 
1500 Equity Sharesaf Rs. lo/- Each, Rs. 5 paid up 

30.24.400 Equity Shares of Rs. 101- Each, Rs. 2.5 paid up 

55,000,000 

- ~1.~62.000 31,062,000 

7,500 

7,561,000 

7,500 

7,561,000 



HI - KLASSTRADING AND INVIESTMENTS LIMITED 

Note No. 7 

Caeital Reserves 
Share Premium Account 

Other Equity 

Retained Earnin~r 
As per Last Financial Statement 
Add : Net Prafit/(Net Loss) For the year 

Closing Balance 

. .'>%FmK;Y ... >, ...... YK2':. <*$< **6<2~;pL-zwq:;~.qm~:.:: -.-w;.i;,.' +.+.. ,:,>., ... + .F...!,.; . , . . " . , . , . . " ,  - ,  

I 
Total 

.7&<h-t'31<t ~-&$-J. ;;[.:y$'.. .-5---.4x . . V ~ $ , ~ ~ S G  

Note No. 8 
Trade Payables - Current ..... ..:: ;,;<,..:. . .:7 ..:. . . ...' : . .  - . . . .  ..: .. ........... :.. .:, : .  . . .  . . . .  

I I 
l ~ u e s  to Creditors other than Micro, Small, and 1 195,892 1 618,544 1 
Medium Enterprises 

Total 
. . .  : : .  ........... < *..,. :.pF,,c<.4 ,i.> 

.,::~s~~:,~i~r;!i~~9~,,~9~;.:~;~$i~~8:;~x,~~$~&? 



HI - KLASSTRADING AND INVIESTMENTS LIMITED 

Ndte No. 9 Notes Forming part  o f  the financial statement f o r t he  year ended 31st March, 2019 

Revenue from operations 

Note No. 10 

Other Income 

.+l*i"V< ,q*p*M.9":4',;a#*gp, *"p'". 6' 
&!!~u!:.~5:~ -a p . ~ @ ~ * ~ ,  ,, y~;r@f,&+!@l 
Other non-operatang lrcome [net of expenses d:rectlv I I 

Note No. 11 

Purchases of Stock-ln-Trade . .. 
. .-, ..&, .i* ., .+ - -  - ? 

I 

Note NO. 12 i 

Pruchase ofshares 

Total 

Opening Stock-in-Trade (A) 

Closing Stock-in-Trade (0) 

. . 

:#:g~~~:;.$$,lA"i:i:i:i:i:i:i:>iIII 
I;~~$;:;:;;:::;:::~~~$&;~ 

Changes in inventories of Fin:shed Goods, Work-in.Progrers and Stock-in-Trade 

Note No. 13 

=\: . . :. ?:, . . 
t=hl&.lifi. ;?$;;<:c.F;. ;.;:;?<:ij~~~.:;:$g:~&~.;;+g;;~:;$, .g&;;izpl&El&-... ::;: . . , 2 . . . . . . .,. :;.;.y >-.. 

423,135 

iii;.i.:::!:y.;:'@;8;a*P,- 

.;9g$;$2!;*::;.!,42$3$; 

>_.., 
:$;;.- ,,o~,<~~::*.: .. - :?,! . ..:. .,.: ,:...., ..-. 1.7 

Salaries 

Remuneration to Director 

I 

Employee Benefit Expenses 

Total (A-6) 

. . . . .. ....., ,.:-..., :: 
Pdn~ ic~ la rs ,  , ,  . : . . . . .  ? V'.. 

..,. , : ,  :.. .. ,<,:.;;c ', ::.:.:- ...: - 111. 7.  2018:19' ::C,:, " ~ _ .  .. . c .  , ...., J . . ' .  ' .  
: . i  i017.j8,; ', :: 

><'., "':. . ,. 



HI - KWSTRADING AND INVIESTMENTS LIMITED 

Notes Forming part of the financial statement for the year ended 31st March. 2019 

Note No. 14 

Note 141a) Payment to Aua:tam 

I To Statutory Auditors 

- Statutow Audit Fees 

Note 15 

Dlsdorure Requirement as per lnd 1\5-24 -Related P a w  Dirclorurer 

Mandeep Kaur 

Surerh lain - Managing Director 

b) Remuneration to Key Manegerial Person 

Name I Designation c. 
0" 

Pravin Chopda 

 a an deep Kaur 1 276,000 1 

Chief Finandal Officer 

c) The company has not entered into related party tranractions except Payment of Remuneration. Such 
parties and transactions have been identified as per ind As 24"Related Party Dirclo~urer'isrued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 



HI - KLASS TRADING AND INVIESTMENTS LIMITED 

Notes Forming part of the financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 
Notes No. 1 

1. Nature of business 
The Company was incorporated with the following main objects: 
I To c a m  on the business of exporting, importing, storing; supplying, purchasing, selling, bartering, exchanging, distributing and 
otherwise dealing in all kindls of goods, commodities, merchandise produce, things and shares on ready or forward basis on its 
own account or otherwise. 
2. The company was incorporated on 08.04.1992 under the provision of the Companies Act 1956. To cany on the business of 
investment company and do invest in and to hold, purchase, sell and deal with the stocks, shares, bonds, debentures-stock; 
mortgage and obligations. 
The Company is engased in trading and investment in shares, stocks, securities and properties and extends short term loans to 
Corporate and Firmshigh Net worth individuals. 

The registered office of the Company is situated at 24, Veer Nariman Road, Rehman Building, 2nd Floor, Office No. 15. Fort. 
Mumbai - 400 001. 

The Financial statement were approved and adopted by board of directors of the Company in the meeting dated 16.05.2019, 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

2.1. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND PREPARATION O F  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial statements of the Conlpany have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in 
India (Ind AS ) to comply with the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 as amended by the companiis (Indian Accounting Standards (Amendmened)Rule 2016, The Company Adopted Ind AS 
w.e.f. April 01, 2017(with the transition date of April 01,2015) and acordingly these financial results (including all previous year 
comperative periods restated) have been prepared in accordance with the recognistion and measurment principals prescribed 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act , 2013 read with the Relevent rules issued there under and other accounting 
principalsgenerally accepted in india 

The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as I2 months for the purpose of current I non-current classification of assets and 
liabilities. This is based on the nature of products and the time behveen acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in 
cash and cash equivalents. 

The Financial statement are present in INR and all figures are rounded off near to Rupee. 

2.2. Taxation 
Provision for current tax is determined as the amount oftax payable in respect of estimated taxable income for the year and in 
accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961. 

2.3. Earnings per share 
The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's EPS comprises the net profit after tax. The number of shares used in 
computing basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. 

2.4. Revenue Recognition 
Re\*enue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the company and the revenue can be 

2.5. Provisions & Contingeneies 
A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow 
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation. 

2.6. Financial Instruments: 



3) Financial Asset 

Financial Assets are measured at amortised cost or fair value through Other Comprehensive Income or fair value through Profit or 
Loss, depending on its business model for managing those financial assets and the assets contractual cash flow Characteristics. 

Subsequent measurements of financial assets are dependent on initial categorisation. For impairment purposes significant financial 
assets are tested on an individual basis, other financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk 
characteristics. 

a) Financial Liability 
At initial recognition, all financial liabilities other than fair valued through profit and loss are recognised initially at fair value less 
transaction costs that are att-ibutable to the issue of financial liability. 

2.7. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash deposit with banks. 

2.8. Cnsh Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of anon- 
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses 
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the 
Company are segregated. 

2.9 -Investment property 
The Company does not have any Immovable Property 

2.10-Property ,Plant & Equipment 

The company is having computer & Fax Machine which is carrying in balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
Cost is amount of cash or cash equivalents paid to acquire assets at the time of acquistion or construction. 

2.11. Ind AS - 108 relating to "Operating Segment" is not applicable as the company has only one segment i.e. inveshnent and 
finance. 

3 Related Party Disclosure 

(a) The company had paid following remuneration to its Key Manegerial person during the year ended 31.03.2019: 

Name 
Mandeep Kour 
Suresh Jaun 
Total 

Designation Amount 
CS 276000 
Manaing Director 36000 

312000 

(b) As per Ind AS-24 "Related party Disclosure", the following are related parties: 
Associate Companies I NIL 
Joint Venture Company NIL 

I 

Key Management Personnel and their relatives 
Enterprises over which key management 
personnel and their relatives have significant 
influence 

1. Suresh Jain MD 
2. Pravin Chopda CFO 
3. Mandeep Kaur CS 

NIL 



The company has not entered into related party transactions except Payment of Remuncration of Rs. 36,0001- to Managing Director 
Mr. Suresh Jain. Such parties and transactions have been identified as per Ind As 24 "Related Party Disclosures' issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

4. Investment are stated at cost of acquisition o r  fair market values which ever is less. 

Current Year Previous vear 
Units - Value - Units - Value 

Investment in Mutual Fund 
Reliance Mutual Fund, Growth Plan 14.27 10,000 14.27 10,000 

5 Audit Fee 

Estimate amount of Oustanding Capital Nn. NIL 

Payment to Auditors (inclusive of GST) 
(Amount in Rs.) 

Commitments not provided for 

Particulars 
Audit Fee 
Limited Review 
For Certification1 other Services 

6. Depreciation: Depreciation is provided using wrinen down value method at the rates prescribed under Schedule I1 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

7 Amount due to Micro, Small and medium Enterprises. 
There are no hlicro and Small Scale Business Enterprises to whom the company overdues, which are outstanding for more then 45 
days as at March 3 l"2019. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro , Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available 
with the company. Therefore, the prescribed disclosures for liability of interest on overdue payment have not been given. 

2018-19 
29,500 

8. In thc opinion of Board of Directors, current financial assets and other asset have a value on realisation in the ordinary course 
of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Balance sheet and provisions for liabilities are adequate. 

2017-18 
23,000 

9. Previous year figures 
F iyres  of the previous year have been regrouped /reclassified wherever considered necessary to confirm to current year 
classification. 

For  R R Gawande & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN No.: 123762W 

R R Gawande 
Proprietor 
M.No.-114553 

Place : Mumbai. 
The 16th day of May, 2019 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Suresh Jain 
Director 
DIN No. 01 142300 

Pravin Chopda 
CFO, PAN No. AABPC1906C 

Vimal Patangia 
Director 

DINNo. 00166331 

CS Mandeep Kaur 



HI - KLASS TRADING AND INVESTMENTS LIMITED 
ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 

(a) In the form of Unsecured debentures 
(b) In the form of partly secured 
debentures i.e. debentures where there 
is a shortfall in the value of security 
(c ) Other public deposits 

(Additional disclosure as required in term of para 13 of Non- banking financial @on deposit 
accepting or holding) companies prudential norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007 issued by 
Reserve Bank of India. 

(1) 

(2) 

Nil. 

Particulars 
Liabiliti ide: 
Loans and advances availed by the 
NBFCs inclusive of interest accrued 
thereon but not paid: 
(a) Debentures 
Secured 
Unsecured (Other than falling with 
meaning of public deposits*) 
(b) Deferred Credits 
(c) Term Loans 
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing 
(e) Commercial Paper 
(0 Public Deposits 
(e) Other Loans (specify nature) 
Please see Note 1 below 
Break-up of (l)(Q above (Outstanding 
public deposits inclusive of interest 
accrued thereon but not paid): 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

Nil. 

(3) 

Amount out-standing 

Nil. 
Nil. 

Nil. 
Nil. 
Nil. 

Nil. 
Nil. 
Nil. 

(4) 

Amount overdue 

Nil. 
Nil. 

Nil. 
Nil. 
Nil. 

Nil. 
Nil. 
Nil. 

Assets side : 

Break-up of Loans and Advances 
including bills receivables [other than 
those included in (4) below] : 
(a) Secured - 
(b) Unsecured - 

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on 
hire and hypothecation loans counting 
towards EL/HP activities: 

Amount outstanding 

Nil. 
234.01 



(i) Lease assets including lease rentals 
under sundry debtors: 
(a) Financiallease - 
(b).Operating lease - 
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges 
under sundry debtors: 
(a) Assets on hire - 
(b) Repossessed Assets - 
(iii) Hypothecation loans counting 
towards ELIHP activities 
(a) Loans where assets have been 
repossessed - 
(b) Loans other than (a) above - 
Break-up of Investments : 
Current Investments : 
1. Quoted: 
(i) Shares: 
(a) Equity 
(b) Preference 
(ii) Debentures and Bonds 
(iii) Units of mutual funds 
(iv) Government Securities 
(v) Others (Please specify) 
2. Unquoted: 
(i) Shares: 
(a) Equity 
(b) Preference 
(ii) Debentures and Bonds 
(iii) Units of mutual funds 
(iv) Government Securities 
(v) Others (Please specify) 

Nil. 
Nil. 

Nil. 
Nil. 

Nil. 

Nil. 

Nil. 
Nil. 
Nil. 
Nil. 
Nil. 
Nil. 
Nil. 

Nil. 
Nil. 
Nil. 
Nil. 
0.10 
Nil. 
Nil. 

Long Term investments : 
1. Quoted: 
(i)Shares: 
(a)Equity 
(b) Preference 
(ii) Debentures and Bonds. 
(iii) Mutual funds 
(iv) Government Securities 
(v) Others (Please specify ) 
(2) Unquoted: 
(i) Shares: 
(a) Equity 
(b) Preference 
(ii) Debentures and Bonds 

Nil. 
Nil. 
Nil. 
Nil. 
Nil. 
Nil. 

Nil. 
Nil. 
Nil. 



Category 

(iii) Units of mutual knds 
(iv) Government Securities 
(v) Others (Please specify) : ABSL 
Saving Fund 

Amount net of provisions 

Nil. 
Nil. 
Nil. 

Borrower group-wise classification of all leased assets, stock-on-hire and loans and 
advances : 
Please see Note 2 below 

. , 
(b) Companies in the same 
Group 
(c) Other related parties 

Total Secured 

I I I 

2.'0ther than related parties 

Unsecured 

Nil. 

Nil. 

Nil. 

Nil. 1 

Nil. 
1. Related Parties ** 
(a) Subsidiaries 

Nil. 1 
Nil. 

Nil. I 
Nil. 

Nil. 

Nil. 

Total I Nil. 1 234.01 1 Nil. 1 
I I I 

Investor group-.wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and 
securities (both quoted and unquoted): 

Please see note 3 below 
I I 

Category Market Value I 
Break up or fair 
value or NAV 

ii) DTCL :preference Shares 
iii) DTCL- Equity 
iv) DIL- Equity 
v) FSL- Equity 
Other than related parties 

Book Value (Net 
of Provisions) 

1. Related Parties ** 
(a) Subsidiaries 
(b) Companies in the same Group 
(c) Other related parties - 
i) DSIL Equity Shares 

Nil. 

Nil. 

Nil. 

Nil. 

Nil. 

Nil. 

Nil. 

Nil. 

Nil. 

Nil. 

Nil. 

Nil. 

I I I I I 
** As per Accounting Standard of ICAI (Please see Note 3) 

i) ABSL Saving fund 
Total 

Nil. 

Nil. 

Nil. 

Nil. 



- 
(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

Notes: 
1. As defined in Paragraph 2(l)(xii) of the Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of 

Public Deposits (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998. 
2. Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in the Non-Banking Financial Companies 

Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998. 

her information 

All Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAI are applicable including for 
valuation of investments and other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, 
market value in respect of quoted investments and break uplfair value/NAV in respect of 
unquoted investments should be disclosed irrespective of whether they are classified as long term 
or current in column (5) above. 

Particulars 
Gross Non-Performing Assets 
(a) Related parties j - 
(b) Other than related parties - 
Net Non-Performing Assets 
(a) Related parties - 
(b) Other than related parties - 
Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - 

As per o w  report of even date attached. 

Amount 

Nil. 
Nil. 

Nil. 
Nil. 
Nil. 

For R R Gawande & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn No: 123762W 

R R Gawande 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 114553 
Mumbai : 16.05.2019 

S T Jain 
DIN : 01 142300 

V S Patangia 
DIN : 00166331 

Pravin Chopda CS Mandeep Kaw 
Chief Financial Officer 



HI-KLASS TRADING AND INVESTMENT LIMITED 

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 
AlTENDENCE SLIP 

(TO BE HANDED OVER ATTHE ENTRANCE OFTHE MEETING HALL) 

I hereby record my presence at the 26th Annual General Meeting of Company to be held at 

Office No 15,Znd Floor, Plot No 24, Rehman Building, Veer Nariman Road, Hutatma Chowk, 

Fort, Mumbai - 400 001. 

NAME OF THE AUENDING MEMBER (IN BLOCK LETTERS) 

Name of the Proxy (to be filled in if the Proxy attends instead of the Members) 

SIGNATURE OF THE, MEMBER/ PROXY 

Member's Folio Number No. of Shares held 

Notes: 

1. Shareholder/Proxy holders are requested to bring the attendance slips with them duly 

completed when they come t o  the meeting and hand them over at the gate after affixing 

their signatures on them. 



HI-KLASS TRADING AND INVESTMENT LIMITED 

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 

BOOK- POST 

To, 

If Undelivered Please return to: 

Hi-Klass Trading and Investment Limited., 

Office No 15, 2nd Floor, Plot No 24, 

Rehman Building, Veer Nariman Road, 

Hutatma Chowk, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001 


